Public Document Pack

"l monmouthshire
\JW sir fynwy
Neuadd y Sir
Y Rhadyr
Brynbuga
NP15 1GA

Dydd Mawrth, 3 Mehefin 2025

Hysbysiad o gyfarfod:

Pwyllgor Craffu Lle

Dydd Mercher, 11eg Mehefin, 2025, 5.30 pm,
Neuadd y Sir, Y Rhadyr, Brynbuga, NP15 1GA

Nodwch y cynhelir rhag gyfarfod 30 munud cyn dechrau’r cyfarfod ar gyfer aelodau’r

pwyllgor
AGENDA
Item No | ltem Pages
1. Ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb.

2. Datganiadau o Fuddiant.
3. Fforwm Agored i'r Cyhoedd.

4. Galw mewn benderfyniad y Cabinet ar 21 Mai 2025 yng nghyswllt gosod 1-56
cyn Lyfrgell y Fenni.

Paul Matthews

Prif Weithredwr




MONMOUTHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
CYNGOR SIR FYNWY

MAE CYFANSODDIAD Y PWYLLGOR FEL A GANLYN:

County Councillor Louise Brown
Shirenewton;

Welsh Conservative Party
County Councillor Emma Bryn
Wyesham;

Independent Group

County Councillor Tomos Dafydd Davies
Llanfoist & Govilon;

Welsh Conservative Party
County Councillor Lisa Dymock
Portskewett;

Welsh Conservative Party
County Councillor Jane Lucas
Osbaston;

Welsh Conservative Party
County Councillor Jackie Strong
Caldicot Cross;

Welsh Labour/Llafur Cymru
County Councillor Tudor Thomas
Park;

Welsh Labour/Llafur Cymru
County Councillor John Crook
Magor East with Undy;

Welsh Labour/Llafur Cymru
County Councillor Martyn Groucutt
Lansdown;

Welsh Labour/Llafur Cymru

Gwybodaeth I'r Cyhoedd

Mynediad i gopiau papur o agendau ac adroddiadau

Gellir darparu copi o'r agenda hwn ac adroddiadau perthnasol i aelodau'r cyhoedd sy'n
mynychu cyfarfod drwy ofyn am gopi gan Gwasanaethau Democrataidd ar 01633 644219.
Dylid nodi fod yn rhaid i ni dderbyn 24 awr o hysbysiad cyn y cyfarfod er mwyn darparu
copi caled o'r agenda hwn i chi.

Edrych ar y cyfarfod ar-lein

Gellir gweld y cyfarfod ar-lein yn fyw neu'n dilyn y cyfarfod drwy fynd i
www.monmouthshire.gov.uk neu drwy ymweld &'n tudalen Youtube drwy chwilio am
MonmouthshireCC. Drwy fynd i mewn i'r ystafell gyfarfod, fel aelod o'r cyhoedd neu i
gymryd rhan yn y cyfarfod, rydych yn caniatau i gael eich ffilmio ac i ddefnydd posibl y
delweddau a'r recordiadau sain hynny gan y Cyngor.

Y Gymraeg Mae'r Cyngor yn croesawu cyfraniadau gan aelodau'r cyhoedd drwy gyfrwng
y Gymraeg neu'r Saesneg. Gofynnwn gyda dyledus barch i chi roi 5 diwrnod o hysbysiad



cyn y cyfarfod os dymunwch siarad yn Gymraeg fel y gallwn ddarparu ar gyfer eich
anghenion.



Nodau a Gwerthoedd Cyngor Sir Fynwy

i ddod yn sir ddi-garbon, gan gefnogi lles, iechyd ac urddas i bawb ar bob cam o'u bywydau.

Amcanion rydym yn gweithio tuag atynt

. Lle teg i fyw lle mae effeithiau anghydraddoldeb a thlodi wedi'u lleihau;

. Lle gwyrdd i fyw a gweithio gyda llai o allyriadau carbon a gwneud cyfraniad cadarnhaol at
fynd i'r afael &'r argyfwng yn yr hinsawdd a natur;

. Lle ffyniannus ac uchelgeisiol, lle mae canol trefi bywiog a lle gall busnesau dyfu a
datblygu;

. Lle diogel i fyw lle mae gan bobl gartref maen nhw'n teimlo'n ddiogel ynddo;

. Lle cysylltiedig lle mae pobl yn teimlo'n rhan o gymuned ac yn cael eu gwerthfawrogi;

. Lle dysgu lle mae pawb yn cael cyfle i gyrraedd eu potensial.

Ein gwerthoedd

e Bod yn agored: anelwn fod yn agored ac onest i ddatblygu perthnasoedd ymddiriedus

e Tegwch: anelwn ddarparu dewis teg, cyfleoedd a phrofiadau a dod yn sefydliad a
adeiladwyd ar barch un at y llall.

o Hyblygrwydd: anelwn fod yn hyblyg yn ein syniadau a'n gweithredoedd i ddod yn sefydliad
effeithlon ac effeithiol.

e Gwaith tim: anelwn gydweithio i rannu ein llwyddiannau a'n methiannau drwy adeiladu ar
ein cryfderau a chefnogi ein gilydd i gyflawni ein nodau.

e Caredigrwydd — Byddwn yn dangos caredigrwydd i bawb yr ydym yn gweithio gyda nhw,
gan roi pwysigrwydd perthnasoedd a’r cysylltiadau sydd gennym &’n gilydd wrth wraidd pob
rhyngweithio.

Canllaw Cwestiynau Craffu Sir Fynwy

1. Pam mae'r Pwyllgor yn craffu ar hyn? (cefndir, materion allweddol)
2. Beth yw rdl y Pwyllgor a pha ganlyniad mae'r Aelodau am ei gyflawni?
3. A oesdigon o wybodaeth i gyflawni hyn? Os nad oes, pwy allai ddarparu hyn?

- Cytuno ar y drefn holi a pha Aelodau fydd yn arwain
- Cytuno ar gwestiynau i swyddogion a chwestiynau i Aelod y Cabinet




Craffu ar Berfformiad

1.

Sut mae perfformiad yn cymharu a'r
blynyddoedd blaenorol? Ydy e'n well/yn
waeth? Pam?

. Sut mae perfformiad yn cymharu a

chynghorau eraill/darparwyr gwasanaethau
eraill? Ydy e'n well/yn waeth? Pam?

Sut mae perfformiad yn cymharu a
thargedau gosodedig? Ydy e'n well/yn
waeth? Pam?

Sut cafodd targedau perfformiad eu gosod?
Ydyn nhw'n ddigon heriol/realistig?

. Sut mae defnyddwyr gwasanaethau/y

cyhoedd/partneriaid yn gweld perfformiad y
gwasanaeth?

. A fu unrhyw awdid ac archwiliadau

diweddar? Beth oedd y canfyddiadau?

Sut mae'r gwasanaeth yn cyfrannu at
wireddu amcanion corfforaethol?

. A yw gwelliant/dirywiad mewn perfformiad

yn gysylltiedig i gynnydd/ostyngiad mewn
adnodd?
Pa gapasiti sydd yna i wella?

Craffu ar Bolisi

. Ar bwy mae'r polisi yn effeithio ~ yn

uniongyrchol ac yn anuniongyrchol? Pwy
fydd yn elwa fwyaf/leiaf?

. Beth yw barn defnyddwyr gwasanaeth

/rhanddeiliaid? Pa ymgynghoriad gafodd ei
gyflawni? A wnaeth y broses ymgynghori
gydymffurfio ag Egwyddorion Gunning?

A yw rhanddeiliaid yn credu y bydd yn
sicrhau’r canlyniad a ddymunir?

. Beth yw barn y gymuned gyfan — safbwynt

y 'trethdalwr'?

. Pa ddulliau a ddefnyddiwyd i ymgynghori

a'r rhanddeiliaid? A oedd y broses yn
galluogi pawb a chyfran i ddweud eu
dweud?

. Pa ymarfer ac opsiynau sydd wedi eu

hystyried wrth ddatblygu/adolygu'r polisi
hwn? Pa dystiolaeth sydd i hysbysu beth
sy'n gweithio? A yw'r polisi yn ymwneud a
maes lle mae diffyg ymchwil cyhoeddedig
neu dystiolaeth arall?

. A yw'r polisi'n ymwneud & maes lle ceir

anghydraddoldebau hysbys?

. A yw'r polisi hwn yn cyd-fynd a&'n

hamcanion corfforaethol, fel y'u diffinnir yn
ein cynllun corfforaethol? A yw'n cadw at
ein Safonau laith Gymraeg?

. A gafodd yr holl ddatblygu cynaliadwy, y

goblygiadau cydraddoldeb a diogelu
perthnasol eu hystyried?




Er enghraifft, beth yw'r gweithdrefnau sydd
angen bod ar waith i amddiffyn plant?

9. Faint fydd y gost hon i'w gweithredu a pha
ffynhonnell ariannu sydd wedi'i nodi?

10. Sut fydd perfformiad y polisi yn cael ei
weithredu a'r effaith yn cael ei gwerthuso?




Grymuso Cymunedau
* Sut ydym ni'n cynnwys cymunedau lleol a'u grymuso i ddylunio a darparu gwasanaethau i
gyd-fynd ag angen lleol?
* A ydym ni'n cael trafodaethau rheolaidd gyda chymunedau am flaenoriaethau'r
gwasanaeth a pha lefel o wasanaeth y gall y cyngor fforddio ei ddarparu yn y dyfodol?

* A yw'r gwasanaeth yn gweithio gyda dinasyddion i egluro r6l gwahanol bartneriaid wrth
ddarparu gwasanaeth a rheoli disgwyliadau?

* A oes fframwaith a phroses gymesur ar waith ar gyfer asesu perfformiad ar y cyd, gan
gynnwys o safbwynt dinesydd, ac a oes gennych chi drefniadau atebolrwydd i gefnogi
hyn?

* A oes Asesiad Effaith Cydraddoldeb wedi'i gynnal? Os felly a all yr Arweinydd a'r Cabinet
/Uwch Swyddogion roi copiau i'r Aelodau ac eglurhad manwl o’r Asesiad o'r Effaith ar
Gydraddoldeb (EQIA) a gynhaliwyd mewn perthynas &'r cynigion hyn?

* Aall yr Arweinydd a'r Cabinet/Uwch Swyddogion sicrhau aelodau bod y cynigion hyn yn
cydymffurfio a deddfwriaeth Cydraddoldeb a Hawliau Dynol? A yw'r cynigion yn
cydymffurfio a Chynllun Cydraddoldeb Strategol yr Awdurdod Lleol?

Galwadau’r Gwasanaeth
+ Sut fydd newid polisi a deddfwriaeth yn effeithio ar y ffordd mae'r cyngor yn gweithredu?
* A ydym ni wedi ystyried demograffeg ein cyngor a sut bydd hyn yn effeithio ar ddarparu
gwasanaethau a chyllid yn y dyfodol?

* A ydych chi wedi adnabod ac ystyried y tueddiadau tymor hir a allai effeithio ar eich maes
gwasanaeth, pa effaith allai'r tueddiadau hyn ei chael ar eich gwasanaeth/allai eich
gwasanaeth ei gael ar y tueddiadau hyn, a beth sy'n cael ei wneud mewn ymateb?

Cynllunio Ariannol
* A oes gennym ni gynlluniau ariannol canolig a hirdymor cadarn yn eu lle?
* A ydym ni'n cysylltu cyllidebau a chynlluniau a chanlyniadau ac adrodd yn effeithiol ar y
rhain?

Gwneud arbedion a chynhyrchu incwm
* A oes gennym ni'r strwythurau cywir ar waith i sicrhau bod ein dulliau effeithlonrwydd,
gwelliant a thrawsnewid yn gweithio gyda'i gilydd i sicrhau'r arbedion mwyaf posibl?

* Sut ydym ni'n gwneud y mwyaf o incwm? A ydym ni wedi cymharu polisiau eraill y cyngor
i sicrhau'r incwm mwyaf posibl ac wedi ystyried yn llawn y goblygiadau ar ddefnyddwyr
gwasanaeth?




* A oes gennym ni gynllun gweithlu sy'n ystyried capasiti, costau, a sgiliau'r gweithlu
gwirioneddol yn erbyn y gweithlu a ddymunir?

Cwestiynau i{'w gofyn o fewn blwyddyn i'r penderfyniad:
» A gafodd canlyniadau arfaethedig y cynnig eu cyflawni neu a oedd canlyniadau eraill?
* A oedd yr effeithiau wedi'u cyfyngu i'r grwp yr oeddech chi ar y dechrau yn meddwil
fyddai wedi cael ei effeithio h.y. pobl hyn, neu a gafodd eraill eu heffeithio e.e. pobl ag
anableddau, rhieni a phlant ifanc?

* A yw'r penderfyniad yn dal i fod y penderfyniad cywir neu a oes angen gwneud
addasiadau?

A oes gennym ni'r wybodaeth angenrheidiol i ffurfio casgliadau/i wneud argymhellion i'r
pwyllgor gwaith, cyngor, partneriaid eraill? Os nad oes, a oes angen i ni:
(i) Ymchwilio i'r mater yn fwy manwl?
(i) Gael rhagor o wybodaeth gan dystion eraill - Aelod o'r Bwrdd Gweithredol, arbenigwr
annibynnol, aelodau o'r gymuned, defnyddwyr gwasanaeth, cyrff rheoleiddio...
Cytuno ar gamau pellach sydd i'w cymryd o fewn amserlen/adroddiad monitro yn y dyfodol.







This page is intentionally left blank



, Agenda Iltem 4

monmouthshire
COuNTY CoUneIT

CALL-IN MECHANISM

Call-in

(a) When a decision is made by the executive, an individual member of
the executive or a committee of the executive or an area committee or
under joint arrangements, the decision shall be published, including where
possible by electronic means, and shall be available at the main offices of
the Council normally within two days of being made. All members will be
sent copies of the records of all such decisions within the same timescale,
by the person responsible for publishing the decision.

(b) That notice will bear the date on which it is published and will specify
that the decision will come into force, and may then be implemented, on
the expiry of five clear working days after the publication of the decision,
unless a select committee objects to it and calls it in.

(c) During that period, the proper officer shall call-in a decision for scrutiny
by the committee if so requested by the chairman or any three non-
executive members and shall then notify the decision-taker of the call-in.
He/she shall call a meeting of the committee on such date as he/she may
determine, where possible after consultation with the chairman of the
committee, and in any case within fifteen working days of the publication
of the decision.

(d) If, having considered the decision, the select committee is still
concerned about it, then it may refer it back to the decision-making person
or body for reconsideration, setting out in writing the nature of its concerns
or refer the matter to full Council. If referred to the decision maker they
shall then reconsider, amending the decision or not, before adopting a
final decision.

(e) If following an objection to the decision, the select committee does not
meet in the period set out above, or does meet but does not refer the
matter back to the decision making person or body, the decision shall take
effect on the date of the select meeting, or the expiry of fifteen working
days, from the publication of the decision, whichever is the earlier.

Page 1



(f) If the matter was referred to full Council and the Council does not object
to a decision which has been made, then no further action is necessary,
and the decision will be effective in accordance with the provision below.
However, if the Council does object, the Council will refer any decision to
which it objects back to the decision-making person or body, together with
the Council’s views on the decision. That decision making body or person
shall choose whether to amend the decision or not before reaching a final
decision and implementing it. Where the decision was taken by the
executive as a whole or a committee of it, a meeting will be convened to
reconsider within ten_clear working days of the Council request. Where
the decision was made by an individual, the individual will reconsider
within ten clear working days of the Council request.

(g) If the Council does not meet, or if it does but does not refer the
decision back to the decision-making body or person, the decision will
become effective on the date of the Council meeting or expiry of the period
in which the Council meeting should have been held, whichever is the
earlier.

EXCEPTIONS

(h) In order to ensure that call-in is not abused, nor causes unreasonable
delay, certain limitations are to be placed on its use. These are:

I) three members of the council are needed for a decision to be
called in;

CALL-IN AND URGENCY

(i) The call-in procedure set out above shall not apply where the decision
being taken by the executive is urgent. A decision will be urgent if any
delay likely to be caused by the call in process would seriously prejudice
the Council’s or the public’s interests. The record of the decision, and
notice by which it is made public shall state whether in the opinion of the
decision-making person or body, the decision is an urgent one, and
therefore not subject to call-in. The Head of Paid Service or his/her
nominee must agree both that the decision proposed is reasonable in all
the circumstances and to it being treated as a matter of urgency.
Decisions taken as a matter of urgency must be reported to the next
available meeting of the Council, together with the reasons for urgency.

(j) The operation of the provisions relating to call-in and urgency shall be
monitored annually, and a report submitted to Council with proposals for
review if necessary.

Page 2



3

monmouthshire

CALL IN REQUEST

1.  SUBJECT: LETTING OF THE FORMER ABERGAVENNY LIBRARY

2. DATE OF CABINET MEETING: 21°* of May 2025

3. CABINET DECISION:

Agenda Item - RESOLVED That Cabinet: agrees the following: (i) To award the
lease tender to Monmouthshire Muslim Community Association. (ii) To delegate
authority to the Chief Officer for Resources to negotiate the lease in accordance
with the tender award

4. REASON(S) FOR CALL- IN:

CALL-IN REQUEST: Decision by Cabinet on Lease of The Carnegie Library,
Abergavenny

Subject: Cabinet decision to grant a 30-year lease of the Carnegie Library,
Abergavenny to the Monmouthshire Muslim Community Association (MMCA)

Grounds for Call-In:

1. Lack of Proper Scrutiny/Due Process and Community Consultation:

o This decision was made without being presented to the appropriate Scrutiny
Committee(s) prior to Cabinet approval. Given the sensitivity, scale, and
length of the lease, this represents a significant failure of democratic
oversight.

o Public interest decisions of this magnitude should go through full scrutiny to
ensure community consultation and transparency.

o Democratic community engagement is necessary in view of the lack of
public scrutiny due to no planning approval being needed so that residents/
businesses/faiths and the general public do not have the usual opportunity
to comment on issues such as traffic congestion, parking, noise and
restrictions on hours of operation.

o The Council and Forward Plan was amended on the 21 of October 2024 on
the Future of the Abergavenny Library for a report to Cabinet on the 6™ of
November 2024, It was not &g Blace Committee agenda of the 215 of




October 2024 and the next meeting was on the 7" of November 2024 after
the Cabinet report of the 6™ of November 2024.

o The Cabinet report of the 6™ of November 2024 details the positive Impact
which was not reflected in the invitation to tender with the proposal to offer
the site for community or commercial use to enhance the availability of
opportunities that are open, accessible and of interest to people of all ages
and abilities.

o Inaddition the item has not been kept on the Council and forward planner
for the period it should have been and not even included in the Place
Committee agenda of the 22" of May when other Cabinet reports of the
21° of May were included.

o The Invitation to Tender underlined the Planning Status with its current D1
use class (as a library) but did not fully detail commercial options on change
of use including retail and wholesale use, despite the covenant on the land
allowing for such use.

2. Questionable Timing and Limited Market Exposure:

o The property was marketed for only four weeks in December 2024, during a
well-known period of reduced public and business engagement due to the
festive season.

o This limited window may have inhibited fair market exposure, potentially
impacting the breadth and quality of submissions.

3. Best Value and Financial Sustainability Concerns:

o A lease of 30 years for £500 per month (£6,000 per annum) on a prominent,
centrally located historic building raises serious Best Value concerns under
the Local Government Act 1999, which places a duty on local authorities to
“make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way its
functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy,
efficiency and effectiveness.”

o Although a tender offered the same rental figure, it is unclear whether this
reflects true market value. There has been no independent valuation, and a
30-year commitment without such due diligence is premature.

o Lack of Certainty over the need for a council building over such a long
period.

5. DATE RECEIVED: 30/5/25

Page 4




6. MEMBERS CALLING-IN:

(The Chair of a Scrutiny Committee or any three non-executive members)

Name: Ward:

Clir Louise Brown Shirenewton Ward

Cllr Rachel Buckler Devauden Ward
Cllr Simon Howarth Llanelly Hill

The Scrutiny Committee that will hear the call- in:

Page 5




This page is intentionally left blank



3

monmouthshire
COUNTY.COUNCIL

SUBJECT: Letting of the Former Abergavenny Library
DIRECTORATE: Resources

MEETING: Cabinet

DATE: 21st May 2025

DIVISION/WARDS AFFECTED: All

PURPOSE:
This report is to secure authority to grant a lease for the Former Abergavenny Library.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

That Cabinet agrees the following:

0] To award the lease tender to Monmouthshire Muslim Community Association.
(i) To delegate authority to the Chief Officer for Resources to negotiate the lease
in accordance with the tender award.

KEY ISSUES:
Background

3.1The Former Abergavenny Library was closed in 2014/15, with the library relocated
following completion of the development of the new hub at the Abergavenny Town
Hall. In the subsequent years, the former library has been utilised for a number of
services including Adult Education and most recently MCC’s Pupil Referral Service
(PRS).

3.2In late 2024, Cabinet declared the asset surplus and granted approval to transfer
the asset to MCC’s Landlord Services in order to commence marketing the
property. The objective was to explore opportunities to maximise social benefit and
generate a financial return from an otherwise vacant asset.

3.3Following a period of marketing, a tender deadline was set for receipt of proposals
including detailed business plans for the respective uses. A range of offers were
received. Tenders were evaluated based on an established scoring matrix with
weighting applied to:

- The proposed use and its suitability at a former Carnegie building — with due
consideration for the property’s planning status and restrictive covenant
(prohibiting uses that may result in disturbance to neighbouring properties
e.g. restaurants or bars).

- The evidence of demand for the proposed use — including adherence to the
Council’'s Community and Corporate Plan.

- The proposed terms — inclusive of the lease term, rental offer and repair
obligations.

Page 7




- Due diligence undertaken and experience — acknowledging the age and
condition of the property and potential investment required (subject to use),
as well as the competency of the tenderer to manage the property.

- Financial sustainability — the business plan and financial standing of the
tenderer, inclusive of their funding and medium-term financial outlook.

3.4Appendix A contains an extract of the scoring matrix, with the names of the
tenderers redacted to protect their existing commercial or accommodation
arrangements. Following completion of the evaluation, it is recommended that the
tender is awarded to the highest scoring applicant - the Monmouthshire Muslim
Community Association (MMCA).

3.5Monmouthshire Muslim Community Association are a not-for-profit group
proposing to occupy the building for the creation of Monmouthshire’s first Mosque
and Community Centre. The proposal identifies the demand, need and subsequent
gap in current provision for the rapidly growing Muslim population in
Monmouthshire, serving people of diverse racial, cultural and socioeconomic
backgrounds. An extract from the Business Plan can be found in Appendix B.

3.6The proposal aims to bring the former Abergavenny library into beneficial
community use by providing a mosque and community centre to facilitate
educational, social, economic and recreational value for Muslim residents of
Monmouthshire and the wider community. The proposal outlines the intention to
contribute to improving the health and well-being of all members of the community,
encouraging economic growth by making Monmouthshire a more inclusive and
attractive place to live, promoting interfaith dialogues and supporting the local
community including refugees who have made their home in the area.

3.7The Former Library is considered highly suitable for this purpose due to its central
location, capacity and configuration. The proposed use falls within the properties
existing Use Class (D1), therefore no planning consent is required for the
occupation. Subject to the approval of the recommendations within the report, a
Certificate of Lawfulness will be applied for to provide assurance that no material
change of use is required.

3.8The 2011 census showed that almost half (47%) of the Muslim population in Wales
resided in Cardiff. The second highest was found in Newport (15%) followed by
Swansea (12%). 74% of Muslims resided in these three local authorities.
Abergavenny has the highest number of Muslims within Monmouthshire but not a
single mosque in contrast Newport which has eight, Cardiff has 24 and Swansea
has 7 mosques. The 2021 census showed 1.2% of Monmouthshire residents
identified their ethnic group within the “mixed or Multiple” category, up from 0/7%
in 2011. With no access to a place of worship within the County, residents are
having to travel to mosques in other Local authority areas and this has proved
challenging in terms of travel, arriving at specified prayer times and during
Ramadhan. This also means that children do not have access to learning education
facilities on a daily basis as is a norm for the religion in the rest of the world.

Page 8



3.9MMCA are currently located at St Michael’s Centre where they have successfully
operated alongside other uses and religious groups, with ongoing support from the
trustees of the facility in Our Lady and St Michael’s parish. This has evidenced an
increase in the number of residents attending the Friday prayers who live and work
in Abergavenny and surrounding areas. The Friday prayer provision is also
accessed by local business owners, teachers and the hospital staff at Neville Hall
Hospital. For Muslim people after the home and the workplace, the mosque is the
most frequented place. In accordance with the Community and Corporate Plan’s
commitment for Monmouthshire to be a place of sanctuary, the letting of the
property to MMCA will enable the county to build on its commitment to being a
welcoming, safe and inclusive community.

3.10 Under the proposed terms of a lease to MMCA, the property will be let for 30
years. A rental will be paid for occupancy of the property, generating a financial
return to MCC, and it is not proposed that a rental concessionary grant will be
required. The property will be let on a fully repairing and insuring basis, transferring
the obligations to maintain the asset to the tenant.

3.11 Within the group, there is a reasonable level of experience in property
management and the business plan outlines an intention to invest in the property,
inclusive of energy efficiency measures. Sustainability upgrades, whilst
challenging on a building of this type and listed status, are being actively explored
by the prospective tenant.

3.12 MCCA have outlined their proposed funding and financial strategy, which
proposes utilisation of religious contributions, revenue through educational
classes, crowd funding events and business partnerships. This business case has
been informed by successful operating models in nearby counties such as Igraa
Mosque in Newport, Cardiffs New Mosque & Islamic Cultural Centre, and Bristol’s
Central Mosque. The intention is to also apply for capital grants including the
National Lottery Community Fund, Muslim Charitable Foundations Grants and
Protective Security Funding Scheme.

3.13 MMCA’s proposal directly correlates to the objectives of the Council’s
Community and Corporate Plan 2022-2028, and the objectives of the Asset
Management Strategy to utilise community assets to optimise social value. The
Community and Corporate Plan’s commitment to tackle inequality, create a fair and
safe place to live are reflected in the recommendation to award the tender. MMCA'’s
proposal will repurpose a community asset and facilitate educational, social,
economic and recreational uses. The use will also encourage economic growth by
attracting new residents by making Monmouthshire a more inclusive and attractive
place to live. The principles of Monmouthshire’s commitment as a county of
sanctuary is reflected in MMCA's business plan.

3.14 Should this report's recommendations be approved, MCC’s Estates
Department will commence drafting of legal agreements and progress towards
lease completion and handover of the property. It is proposed that the tenant would

Page 9



commence a period of public engagement with neighbouring properties and local
partners, such to aid the transition into the property and mobilisation of the scheme.

4. EQUALITY AND FUTURE GENERATIONS EVALUATION:

4.1 An Integrated Impact Assessment has been undertaken, attached as Appendix

3.

4.2 A summary from Section 8 of the Integrated Impact Assessment identifying the
significant positive and negative impacts is detailed below.

Positive Impact

The proposal will enable an underutilised asset to be repurposed.

The proposal to offer the site for community use will enhance the availability
of opportunities that are open, accessible and of interest to people of all
ages and abilities.

This proposal will strengthen and widen the opportunities available by
providing a mosque and community centre to facilitate educational, social,
economic and recreational value for Muslim residents of Monmouthshire and
the wider community.

Developing the site as a community asset/opportunity will further extend the
range of opportunities and activities within the community.

Monmouthshire’s commitment as a county of sanctuary is about improving
outcomes by providing a welcoming environment, challenging discrimination
and negative perceptions and ensuring equality of opportunity where
possible. The proposal strives to promote good relations between groups
ensuring vibrant and cohesive communities.

Negative Impacts

The creation of an additional community facility in close proximity to a
number of existing community assets may negatively impact the
sustainability of other assets.

5. OPTIONS APPRAISAL

Option Benefits Risks Recommendation
Do not award | e«  Whilst the property would be e That the property falls into
the tender — vacant, the property would be disrepair and remains
retain the retained for the delivery of underutilized, in conflict with the
property other council services should commitments of the Asset
the need arise. Management Strategy to

maximise the use of property.
e The property would continue to
result in costs to MCC through
utilities and business rates.
e Reopening the property for an
MCC service may introduce

Page 10




Option Benefits Risks Recommendation
additional revenue costs and
budget pressures.
Award the The property is a well-known That the proposal is Recommended the
tender to asset and is suitable for the unsuccessful and other potential | tender is awarded
MMCA and community use proposed. uses have failed to be achieved. | to MMCA and the

progress with
granting of a
lease

MCC would offset any ongoing
running costs associated with
the asset and generate a
financial return.

Would enable policy objectives
around community enablement
and social value to be
supported, in accordance with
the Asset Management
Strategy and Community &
Corporate Plan.

That MCC forgo an opportunity
to repurpose or develop the site
to meet other policy objectives.
That the asset fails to perform in
accordance with the Business
Plan and arrears created or the
asset returns to MCC as a
liability.

The duplication of services could
detract from existing community
assets and tenants, impacting
their own viability and
sustainability.

Estates
Department
progress draft
legal agreements.

Award the
tender to an
alternative
proposal

Subject to negotiation, a
potentially greater financial
return could be derived from
alternative commercial uses.
A shorter lease term could be
entered, thereby protecting
MCC'’s position should the
proposal be unsuccessful and
therefore isn’t bound by a long
lease commitment.

Acceptance of an alternative
offer would be contrary to the
scoring matrix and established
process by which tenderers are
awarded.

The alternative offers may
require planning consent, and
uncertainty over whether change
of use will be granted could
delay progress of the letting.
Subject to negotiation, a
potentially greater financial
return could be derived from
alternative commercial uses.
The duplication of services could
detract from existing community
assets and tenants, impacting
their own viability and
sustainability.

6. EVALUATION CRITIERIA

6.1 Landlord Services, supported by MCC Legal, will be responsible for negotiating
the draft lease agreement and ongoing management of landlord and tenant
communication. The asset would be monitored and managed in accordance
with the commitments of the Asset Management Strategy.

7. REASONS:

Page 11




7.1

7.2

7.3

The property is vacant and tenders have been received to purchase or lease
the asset. A tender evaluation has taken place against a scoring matrix, which
has recommended award of the tender to Monmouthshire Muslim Community
Association. The scoring criteria and evaluation is made on balance, judgement
and experience.

The property lends itself to a range of different uses and has potential to
generate a financial return to MCC. Maximising the use of property that is
under-utilised features in the principles of the Council’'s Asset Management
Strategy.

Award of the tender to MMCA will enable the development of Monmouthshire’s
first Mosque and Community Centre, helping to address a longstanding desire
for provision within the County. The proposed lease of the property will secure
the provision of the new facilities for the benefit of the Muslim community and
wider population, providing access to services not readily available locally.

8. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS:

8.1

The annual running costs (utilities and business rates) of the former library at

the time of occupation was approximately £24,000 per annum. Whilst MCC will not be
incurring these costs since the property has been vacated, MCC are continuing to incur
holding costs (standing charges, business rates). Upon completion of the lease, this
liability will be transferred to the tenant. Leasing of the property will also generate an
annual rental of £6,000 pa.

8.2By supporting these proposals, MCC would potentially be forgoing any alternative use
and/or development of the property. The site has potential for different commercial
uses that may generate a higher market rental, however the properties former use as
a ‘Carnegie building’ may make sure uses unachievable or inappropriate. The property
is also subject to a restrictive covenant.

8.3MCC will not incur any capital costs under the proposal, with the cost of ongoing
operation and running costs met by the tenant.

9.

CONSULTEES:

Landlord Services

Joanne Chase, MCC Legal Services

Lucinda Boyland — Community Development and Delivery Manager
Cllr Laura Wright — Ward Member

10.BACKGROUND PAPERS:

Appendix 1 — Scoring Evaluation

Appendix 2 — Monmouthshire Muslim Community Association’s Business Plan
Appendix 3 — Integrated Impact Assessment

Appendix 4 - Redline Plan

Page 12



12. AUTHOR:

Nicholas Keyse, Acting Head of Landlord Services

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Monmouthshire County Council - Former Abergavenny Library

Tenders are scored 1-5.
= poor/insufficient information
2 = limited information provided
3 =acceptable level of information

4 =very good level of information provided

5 = detailed and comprehensive level of information provided

GT abed

Proposal Evidence of demand
Applicant Tenure Terms Prorfosa'l‘and .and‘ . Due D|l|gt.ence and and Adher'ance to Financial Sustainability
Suitability Suitability Experience Community and
(score) Corporate Plan
Unconditional
Freehold offer .
freehold purchase Community
Tender A to purchase o 4 4 3 4
or lease property activities.
and Leasehold
30 year lease
Community
activities including
3year lease. 12 ilates
month break .p Y
Tender B Leasehold meditation, yoga, 3 1 3 3
clause. Rent free selling 'local
of 6 months. g
products',
workshobs for
Muslim
Community Centre
and Mosque.
Tender C Leasehold 30 year lease. g ) 5 4 5 3
Place of worship,
educational hub
and social hub.
Private day care
Tender D Leasehold 10years lease. | nursery with flying 2 1 1 1

start provision




This page is intentionally left blank



Monmouthshire Muslim Community
Association
MMCA

Business Case

Date: December 2024

Page 17



MMCA

Business case
Contents
1.0  EXOCUtiVe SUMMATY ........coociimvriirriirrierrerrres s srnnirnr v rearsssssssssssssnessssmsessssnns 3
20 Purposeandalms..................ccooiiciici v a e e 4
3.0 Background ... e s nres 4
40 LocalContext ... e ————— 7
5.0 Management and Implementation structure............................onen..n... 9
6.0 Challonges ..................o it eseer s e e s v rr e ea s s ene s smrene 10
7.0 Servicedslivery.............. e s 12
71 ValueBased approach ... 12
8.0 Suitability of the Oid Abergavenny Library Building............................ 15
8.1 MinorModifications....................cco e 15
9.0 MONIONNG..........ccooiie e crcernr e s e s ae s s as e s s ntr e e ae e nn s mre s 16
10.0 Marketing .........ccociieimciiirr et s rr e e e e s 16
11.0 GOVOIMANCH. ...t s eas s s aeee st e s ane et sassmme e s s e s anasnesres 17
12.0 PartershipWorking ...............coo et erer e s s 17
13.0 Funding Implications ................. et e 17
14.0 Way Forward.............. .. e ee s 18
APPENAICIES ..ottt e ceie s s ss s rssne s essssmesssme e e sam e s e e e s e e esaabasasaaranse s snnene srnean 19
Appendix A - Islam and Prayer
Appendix B — MMCA Constitution
Appendix C — MMCA Annual reporis
Appendix D —~ MMCA Committee structure
Appendix E — MMCA 5-year plan
Appendix F - Site plan of former Abergavenny Library
Appendix G — SWOT Analysis
Appendix H — MMCA Financial position
Page 2 0f 19
Page 18 December 2024



MMCA
Business case

1.0 Executive Summary

This business case proposes the utilisation of the old Abergavenny Library building
located at Baker Street, Abergavenny, NP7 5BD as a Muslim Community Centre and
Mosque. This proposal identifies demand, need, and subsequent gap in current
provision for the rapidly growing Muslim population in Monmouthshire, serving people
of diverse racial, cultural, and sociceconomic backgrounds.

These past few years have remained challenging as health and social care systems
face significant pressures exacerbated further by the impact of cost of living, warkforce
shortages and funding cutbacks. Monmouthshire Muslim Community Associafion
(MMCA) acknowliedges the pivotal role that our community plays in highlighting and
informing necessary service improvement and change, through educating and
promoting inciusion and diversity. The huge contribution of our community not only
makes an invaluabie difference to the people in Monmouthshire , MMCA is also an
integral part of our society and conducive to vital partners, bridging the gap between
services, strategies, and policies which has a direct impact on future generations . We
acknowledge that with the increased pressures on health and social care, the role of
the community has become even more crucial to help address the challenges and fill
the gaps.

Mosques play a fundamental role in British society and are incredible places of hope,
peace and unity. The Mosque is three distinct spaces rolied into one:

1. Place of worship; where devotees can practise and develop their spirituality, refigion
and prayer (Appendix A).

2. Educational hub; leaming for young and old and not limited to religious
understanding or sciences, but also for life skills, such as ethics, morality, numeracy,
ICT and social skills.

3. Social hub; a public place for meeting, social interaction, and bringing people of
different faiths and backgrounds together to promote religious tolerance and
-understanding, along with sustaining integrated recreational activities, funerals,
marriages and festivals.

In light of this, identifying a permanent centrally located mosque remains a key
precedence and MMCA look forward to continuing fo build and sustain productive and
open relationships with community partners so that the core ethos of the mosque is
apprehended.

We want to make integrated communities everyone’s’ business. To do this a
mosque should be a PART of the local neighbourhood, not APART from it.

Page 3 of 19
Pag e 19 December 2024



2.0

MMCA
Business case

Purpose and aims

The proposal aims to:

Establish a community place of worship (Mosgue) with space for religious,
educational, and social functions for Muslim residents and the wider community
of Monmouthshire.

Bring the Old Abergavenny library into beneficial community use by providing
a community mosque that facilitates educational, social, economic and
recreational value for the Muslim residents of Monmouthshire and the wider

community.

Foster integrated, cohesive communities by offering programs for education,
skills development, and personal growth.

Contribute to improving the health and well-being of all members of the local
community.

Encourage economic growth and aftract new residents by making
Monmouthshire a more inclusive and attractive place to live, and which will
contribute to economic growth placing Monmouthshire as a preferred place to
live.

Promote interfaith dialogues to encourage greater religious and cultural
tolerance and thereby eradicating Islamophobia.

The proposal ensures that:

3.0

it meets the needs and demands of the demographic population of
Monmouthshire.

it aligns with Monmouthshire County Councils Strategic priorities and values.
The request is appropriate and proportionate to the demand.

The infrastructure already exists and is well placed to deliver and develop this
place of worship and community faclility.

Background

The first mosque in Britain was Masjid-e-Abu Hurairah, which was set up in Cardiff in
1860. Until the 1950's mosques remained a very minor part of the British landscape
and tended to be residential houses converted into places of worship for the small
numbers of Muslims then living in Britain at that time. That changed when large
numbers of Muslim migrants, mainly male work force, were atiracted by the British

Paged of 19
Page 20 December 2024



MMCA
Business case

Government to leave their homelands, comforts, families and familiar surroundings to
help rebuild Britain and fill the labour shortage.

Muslims also gave their lives fighting for Britain as servicemen and support staff during
the first and second World wars, with a number of Commonwealth War graves located
in Abergavenny, and others in South Wales, which stand to remind us of the
commitment, dedication and devotion of Muslims.

Many Muslims acquiesced to assist and arrived from the Indian sub-continent after the
Second World War. As the Muslim community changed complexion and grew, so did
the function of mosques: they began to assume a more central role, moving away from
being a simple venue of prayer to being a social hub in the community with a role in
helping Muslims integrate locally and build partnerships with rich, diverse communities
of many cultures and backgrounds. Many of the larger cities in the UK, such as Cardiff,
Swansea and Newport are prime examples of this growth in Muslim population and
mosques.

Islamic society has assumed a multifunctional role for many centuries. The main role
of the mosque is not only to provide a place for praying but also to serve as a centre
of peace and tranquillity, where worshippers gather to strengthen a sense of
community and solidarity. Although often known as places of worship, mosques also
have significant educational and social extents in the development of society in
strengthening community's educational, social, and spiritual dimensions, promoting
interreligious dialogue and intercultural cooperation, supporting interfaith dialogue and
reducing religious conflict by promoting tolerance and peace in diverse societies.
Mosques also provide spiritual containment, support the purpose of living, nourishing
mental heaith and wellbeing, a place that promotes care for one ancther, humbleness
and gratitude.

The Muslim population is increasingly growing, and Monmouthshire has benefitted
from the skills, value and resources this population brings. In 2021 the South Wales
Argus and Monmouthshire County Council hailed the provision of a Friday prayer
facility as a success.

Muslim community able to perform praver at Abergavenny venue | South Wales Arqus
New facility in Abergavenny welcomes Muslim community to practice faith in
significant milestone for residents - Monmouthshire

Page50f19
Page 21 December 2024



MMCA
Business case

Although it is recognised that there is need to support communities, the gap in the
provision for equal access to a sustained and permanent place of worship that caters
for all the mandatory daily prayers still remains unmet.

There is currently no mosgue in Monmouthshire County. This proposai will address
the gap and be momentous in establishing the first mosque in the history of
Monmouthshire.

in 2023, the council held their first Iftar event during Ramadan to celebrate the
traditional community breaking of the fast practised in the Muslim faith. Members of
the MMCA, MCC council members, leaders and officers, as well as guests from
various faiths and backgrounds came together to understand and leam more about
the Muslims of Monmouthshire.

It was here that the council were challenged publicly on its provision of services for the
population in which it serves and asked to pledge and commit to cater for its growing
Muslim population. This was declared as a priority commitment by the council leader
and cabinet member leader. The iftar event was also repeated for Ramadan 2024.
Once again, the leaders and cabinet members were held to account on their action to
progress with their commitment of 2023. The noble commitment was reaffimed.

Monmouthshire councils’ self-assessment covering the period 2022-23 stressed that
their “absolute priorities are to tackle inequality” with:

s A fair place to live where “Nobody should be left behind in Monmouthshire and
we are working to help those who need support fo live the life they wanf".

¢ A connected place where people care and Monmouthshire will be a place where
people’s contributions are valued, and feel part of a community and connected
to others.

s A hub-based approach helping people connect with one another within their
local community and which reduces the need to rely solely on formal services.

Page 6 of 19
Page 22 December 2024



MMCA
Business case

Key frameworks and documents which link to and influence the support for this
proposal include:

o Monmouthshire County Councils’ strategic equality objectives 2024-2028:
“Creating cohesive communities”

¢ Monmouthshire’s’ Community and Corporate Plan that sets out a commitment
to work with and alongside communities, empowering people 1o support each
other and come up with long-term solutions.

o Wellbeing of Future Generations Act 2015;
e Population Needs Assessments;
o Gwent Area plan;

« Welsh Government's long-term plan for health and social care “A Heaithier
Wales”,

e Welsh Government Carers Strategy for Unpaid Carers 2021 and
e Social Services and Well-being (VWales) Act 2014.

4.0 Local Context

There is a strong sense of community spirit in Monmouthshire, which is an important
factor in people’s well-being. Faith and religion also play an important role in mental
health and well-being, and people benefit from feeling a sense of belonging.

On 21 March 2021, the size of the usual resident poptlation in Wales was 3,107,500;
this was the largest population ever recorded through a census in Wales and showed
that the population of Wales has grown by 44,000 (1.4%) since the last census in
2011, when it was 3,083,456. Monmouthshire’s population grew to 93,000. The table
below shows the fotal population in the Gwent area.

Usual ' Usual
| resident resident
population, @ population, Percentage
LA name 2011 2021 change
Caerphilly 178,806 175,900 | -1.6
Blaenau Gwent 68,814 66,900 4.2
Torfaen 91,075 92,300 13
Monmouthshire 91,323 93,000 1.8
Newport 145,736 | 159,600 9.5

(Source: Office of National Statistics Census 2021)

Page 7 of 19
Pag e23 December 2024



MMCA
Business case

The Abergavenny area is also the most diverse in terms of ethnicity; although those
of white ethnicity make up vast majority*bf the population, proportions of mixed race
and Asian ethnicities are the highest in Monmouthshire (0.8% and 1.4%). 62.1% aof the
population in the area declare themselves as Christlan.

Between the last two censuses (held in 2011 and 2021), the population of
Monmouthshire increased by 1.8%, from around 91,300 in 2011 to around 23,000 in
2021. This means Monmouthshire's population increased by a greater percentage
than the overali population of Wales. The population of Wales increased by 1.4%, from
3,063,000 to 3,107,000.

In 2021, 48.7% of peopie in Monmouthshire described themselves as Christian (down
from 62.5%), while 6.2% did not state their religion (down from 7.7% the decade
before). There are many factors that may be contributing to the changing ethnic
composition of England and Wales, such as differing patterns of ageing, fertility,
mortaiity, and migration. Changes may also be caused by differences in the way
individuals chose to self-identify between censuses. Also religious affiliation is the
religion with which someone connecis or identifies, rather tifan their beliefs or religious
practice and the religion question in the census is a voluntary rather than mandatory
one.

The 2021 census showed, 1.2% of Monmouthshire residents identified their ethnic
group within the "Mixed or Multiple" category, up from 0.7% in 2011. The 0.5
percentage-point change was the largest increase among high-level ethnic groups in
this area. Across Wales, the percentage of peopie from "Mixed or Multiple ethnic
groups” increased from 1.0% to 1.6%.

96.9% of peopie in Monmouthshire identified their ethnic group within the "White"
category (compared with 98.0% in 2011), while 1.3% identified their ethnic group
within the "Asian, Asian British or Asian Wel&h" caiegory (compared with 1.0% the
previous decade). The percentage of people who identified their ethnic group within
the "Other” category ("Arab" or "Any other ethnic group”) increased from 0.1% in 2011
to 0.3% in 2021.

In catering for the Muslim population, the nearest Mosque to Abergavenny is Berea
Masjid located in Blaina - Blaehau Gwent.

Currently St. Michael's Community Centre located next to the Roman Catholic Church,
Abergavenny is being hired for the weekly Friday prayer.

In addition, MMCA must locate other hiring facilities such as Llanfoist Village Hait for
Ramadan weekly Iftars and evening prayers, Llanatilio Pertholy Hall for Eid prayers,
and Wellafield Hall for other social gatherings; at times this is challenging as the need
cannot be met at the dates and times required.

There is an overwhelming need for a mosque in Monmouthshire due to the growing
Muslim popuiation . This will be enjoyed by the whole community for many years to
come but is aiso of historical significance.

Page 8 of 19
Page 24 December 2024



MMCA
Business case

5.0 Management and Implementation structure

Monmouthshire Muslim Community Association (MMCA) is a community organisation
run by dedicated volunteering individuals that provide centralised essential support
setvices to Monmouthshire in response to the demand and need that caters for the
growing Muslim population. It was formally constitutionalised on 8t October 2021
{Appendix B).

The organisation is well established with multi-agency partnerships working across
Health, social care and the third sector to deliver support and services to its
community. With a robust implementation structure that ensures the monitoring,
progress and delivery against agreed milestones and annual reporis are prepared to
refiect progress and achievements to date (Appendix C).

Its leadership underpins strategic decision making at a local level where the citizens
voice is key to the planning and delivery of services and aligned to wider strategic and
policy agendas.

MMCA committee meet on a regular basis and comprises of the following structure
{Appendix D)

Honorary Chair — Mr. Mohammad Habboub
Hon Vice Chair = Dr. Waleed Akeel

Hon Treasurer — Mr. Adil Gatrad

Hon Vice Treasurer ~ Dr. Atif Nada

Hon Secretary — Mrs. Maddie Saraireh

Hon Volunteers — Dr. Mohammad Ghazi, Mrs. Nermin Zawi, Mrs. Duaa Zawi, Mr.Abduf
Naser

MMCA has organised numerous activities and services aimed at creating a sense of
belonging, fostering community spirit, and supporting vulnerable groups including
refugees, asylum seekers and new immigrants.

Some key initiatives and activities include:

o Weekly Friday Sermon & Prayers (Jumu'ah). Our weekly obligatory
gathering for Friday prayers has grown significantly, with over 50 male and
female attendees on a regular basis. We have been holding these gatherings
with the help of a local Roman Catholic church, but the increasing number of
attendees means the space is becoming too small and require a permanent
venue.

Page 90f19
Page 25 December 2024



MMCA
Business case

e Ramadan Community Events: During the holy month of Ramadan, we host
weekly iftars (breaking of the fast) dinners, which are open to the local
community. These events are not only an opportunity for Muslims to come
together but also serve as a bridge to the wider Monmouthshire community. We
have regularly invited council members, local church, faith and non-faith
representatives, and other community group leaders and key dignitaries to join
us for these meals since 2023.

e Tarawih Prayers: This was offered for the last 10 days during the month of
Ramadan 2023, and MMCA were able to successfully organise daily
congregational Tarawih prayers (evening prayer) during Ramadan 2024, a key
religious activity for Muslims during the holy month.

o Monthly Gatherings: MMCA hold monthly gatherings that include religious
lectures, community dinners, and youth-focused activities.

¢ Youth Activities for Ethnlc minorities: in collaboration with the Ethnic Youth
Support Team (EYST) a weekly youth club runs to provide a positive
environment for young people to engage in social, educational, and recreational
activities. By holding interfaith and community events, mosques also allow for
meaningful relationships to be built between people of all faiths and non-
religious people, in a way that otherwise would not be possible

¢ Educational Classes and Fitness Initiatives: Our community offers Arabic
language and Quran classes for children, as well as Zumba and fithess classes
for women to promote health and well-being.

o Support for Refugees and Asylum Seekers: MMCA regularly assists new
families and individuals arriving in Monmouthshire, particularly refugees and
unaccompanied asylum seekers, by offering financial support, advice,
guidance, help with integration, and connecting them to essential services.

6.0 Challenges

The lack of provision of a permanent location has meant the community is faced with
many challenges. For instance, Muslims have 5 mandatory prayers a day, currently
MMCA can only cater for 1 out of the 35 weekly prayers. The stability and continuity
is at risk with the existing arrangement, as it does not allow for increasing number of
attendees, along with facing a challenge in finding temporary venues for our prayers,
religious festivities and events.

A need for a pemanent space is becoming essential, to fulfil the Muslim community
teachings and understandings, we require a dedicated place to consistently provide
and build trust, reassurance, life skills, morals and etiquette for all ages and genders
of the community.

Page 10 0f 19
Page 26 December 2024



MMCA
Business case

There are limitations on the ability to fully serve the community. Establishing a
permanent Muslim Community Centre would enable us to reaffirm and enhance our
activities, provide greater support to families, and strengthen relationships with the
wider community in Monmouthshire.

The following highlights some of the challenges MMCA currently face:

Community Growing Demand:

#« The present temporary facility is inadequate for the growing number of
attendees.

« This situation adversely affects the communal ability to carry out its religious
duties and provide regular religious development and learning opportunities.

Community Programs:

Without a permanent space, the community is unable to fully offer:
» Trust-building and interfaith events.

@ Development of life and social skills for all ages and genders.
® Lessons in morals and etiquettes.

« Develop and maintain relations within the wider community of Monmouthshire.

Risks to Stability and Continuity:

@ Inability to continue relying on temporary locations to conduct prayers, festivals,
and events.

e The instability of temporary locations limits the community in planning:
consistent and sustainable programs.

Need for a Permanent Solution:

Having a permanent space for the Muslim community would achieve the following:

» Provide stability for daily prayers and religious events.
e Allow consistent educational, social, and outreach programs.

# Develop stronger links between the Muslim community and the wider
population in Monmouthshire.

Page 11 of 19
P ag e 27 December 2024



MMCA
Business case

7.0 Service delivery

MMCA 5-year plan outlines some of the key milestones, strategies, and outcomes in
delivering essential services and support to the Monmouthshire Muslim community. In
addition, it highlights integrating digitai communication strategies to enhance
engagement with the Muslim community and the wider population while addressing
spiritual, social, and economic needs, some of these are:

¢ Provide a Mosque (Masjid) for the 35 weekly prayers (5 prayers per day), Friday
Sermon & prayers, Ramadan iftar and Taraweh prayers and Eid prayers.

¢ A permanent imam, who will play a pivotal role in leading the prayers and
guiding the sound teachings of Islam and provide support to the local Musiim
community.

¢ Provide Quran lessons and religious halakat (lessons/ guidance) for both youth
and adults.

s Halal shop.
o Activities within the local community to promote diversity and integration.
s Sustained funding for various community projects.

o Cater for the needs of the Muslim community in Abergavenny and surrounding
areas.

e Provide support to Muslim refugees and unaccompanied asylum seekers.

We have been keen to deliver our services and priorities in proactive meaningful ways
and our 5 year plan reflects this (Appendix E).

7.1 Value Based approach

The Mosque is more than a place of worship and has a critical and instrumental role
in the cultural and political life of Muslims, with immediate social influences. Mosques
are the hub of communities and the operational base for community development and
capacity building. It is where Muslims can cooperate and support young and old people
to build healthier lives and multi-faith societies. Mosques bring social vaiue and act as
a vehicle for social change with a real sense of community:

1. A Sense of Belonging: For many Muslims, particularly those who are refugees
or new to the area, having a stable and supportive environment is essential for
settling into a new community. The mosque would provide a familiar, friendly
space where people from various backgrounds and cultures, with different

Page 12 of 19
Pag e28 December 2024



MMCA
Business case

language and ethnicity can feel a sense of helonging and support. This creates
strong social networks and a sense of community.

. Integration Into the Wider Community: Over the years, MMCA has made
significant strides in building relationships with the wider community. Events like
open iftars during Ramadan and collaboration with local churches for Friday
prayers have allowed people of different faiths to come together. The centre
would serve as a venue for further interfaith activities and cultural exchanges,
promoting greater understanding and cooperation. It would ailso create a strong
culture of volunteering.

. Provision of youth centred service: Engaging more young people, our future
generations, invoived in governing, managing and contributing to mosques
helps them balance their faith with the pressure of modemn life, provide more
activities for them to get involved, and play a wider role in community life and
engagement.

. Conflict Resolution: Mosques play a role in dealing with conflicts and
differences within communities. When there is disagreement or tension,
mosques can be a place for dialogue, deliberation, and finding solutions that
advance the community's common interests. This is part of the mosque's role
in nurturing social solidarity and nurturing positive relationships between
diverse individuals.

. Educational Centres: Teaching the values of folerance, inclusivity and
dialogue contribute to educating the community and youth, along with
supporting local schools in RVE curriculum.

- Environmental: Mosques allow for a better understanding and change of
behaviour in adopting environmental practices and educating on issues such
as green spaces, air and water quality and pollution, energy efficiency, climate
change, waste and recycling. community grow initiatives that grow herbs
familiar to cooking dishes from particular countries e.g. chillies, coriander etc.

. Soclal Value: They create social solidarity and a deep sense of social
responsibility.

. Support Mental health and wellbeing: Mosques help tackle loneliness and
social isolation which can impact physical and mental health. The lack of
identity and belonging can place individuals at greater risk that can exacerbate
the social isolation of older residents, leading to poor health, loss of
independence and lower quality of life.

. Health: Some MMCA members are consultants and the current facilities for
Friday prayer are used by many heatth professionals from Nevill Hal! hospital.
MMCA are therefore well placed to organise health campaigns, such as
vaccinations or free heaith checks as well as work with partners such as Muslim
Doctors Cymru to address high risk health factors and comorbidities for
communities.

Page 13 of 19
Pag e 29 December 2024



MMCA
Business case

10.Engagement: Celebrations of Islamic holidays, charity events, and social
activities such as fundraising for humanitarian causes are pertinent fo mosques.

11.Economy: Muslims represent a wealth of skills, ideas, energy and business
acumen. The mosque can help with work skills empowement of individuals and
communities assisting individuals to become active members of society and
contribute positively. This includes areas such as CV-writing workshops to help
individuals build livelihoods and reduce unemployment. MMCA volunteers are
role models that include successful businesspeople, teachers, young parents,
IT experts and accountants, health consultants and architect. All have skill sets
that can be employed in the community mosque facility. This crucial role in the
economic empowerment of communities helps increase people’s economic
independence and aliows them to achieve financial stability.

12.Agents of soclal change: The mosque is well placed to organise education
programmes on various social issues, including family education, reproductive
health, women's rights, mental health, drugs, or domestic violence tackling anti-
social behaviour, substance misuse, cybercrime, knife crime efc, which can
shape the behaviours and attitudes of Muslims and others and tackle social,
political, and cuitural issues.

13.Promoting Equality and Diversity. Mosques are prime movers in promoting
equality, human rights, and peace. MMCA believes strongly in the values of
equality and diversity. Our mosque would be a welcoming space for people of
all backgrounds, and we are committed to fostering an inclusive environment
where everyone is treated with respect and dignity.

14.Skill Development. Mosques can develop skills and behaviours such as
communication, leadership, character development ethics, morality, tolerance,
integrity, honest, caring towards others and social responsibility with the act or
worship even representing this. By inclusive congregating five times daily,
standing together positioned shoulder to shoulder in a row without any
differences, divisions, distinctions of status and invoking to one God creates
discipline, compassion, unity, equity, brotherhood and mercy. A believer sees
prayer as a privilege to leamn and develop a deeper connection to his creator.

15.Emergencies and humanitarian crises: The mosque is a central point for a
rapid and effective humanitarian response. This was seen during the pandemic
where mosques in Gwent were the first in the UK to introduce on site Covid
vaccination programmes. Mosques provide support for refugees, asylum
seekers and communities affected by natural disasters or conflicts. It creates a
haven for those needing immediate protection and provides humanitarian
assistance help reduce poverty and inequality in society e.g. food programmes,
warm hubs food and clothing distribution.

16.Support for Vulnerable Families: With the mosque acting as a base, we
would be better positioned to provide ongoing support in meaningful ways to
families in need, especially refugees who require financial, emotional, mentai
health and social assistance.

Page 14 of 19
Page 30 December 2024



MMCA
Business case

17.Vacancy risk minimisation: The turnaround time for occupation of the building

would be minimal, if not immediate therefore mitigating risks associated with

empty properties

8.0 Suitability of the Old Abergavenny Library

Building

The identification of the old Abergavenny Library building as a location for the
community mosque facility is a suitable location which addresses the needs, demands
and gaps outlined in this proposal; further endorsed by a recent site visit on September
19, 2024 .( Appendix F)

The key advantages of the site include:

1.

8.1

Location: The building is located in the heart of Abergavenny, making it easily
accessible to the vast majority of the Muslim community. Its central location
also makes it convenient for the wider Monmouthshire population to aftend
events and activities held at the centre; it also falls in close proximity to public
transport routes.

Qibla Wall: The building has a south-east wall which is oriented towards Mecca
called the gibla wall, which faces the Kaaba, the sacred structure at the centre
of Islam’s holiest site.

Layout: The building’s first-floor rooms are suitable for administrative
purposes and small-group educational classes. There is also a small kitchen
facility with hot water, which is sufficient for catering needs during community
gatherings. Additionally, the ground floor is carpeted, making it suitable for
prayer without the need for further renovations. It also meets the requirements
in Islam for the segregation of prayer space for both male and female
worshippers.

Accessible Facilities: The building includes ground-floor toilet facilities, which,
with minor modifications, can be adapted to serve as ablution areas (wudu) for
males and females. This facility is welcomed as cleanliness and washing is a
requirement before prayer can be conducted. Additionally, the building has
multiple access points, including a ramp for disabled individuals.

Proximity to Parking: There are several nearby paid and free car parks, which
can accommodate the needs of attendees without causing any inconvenience
to the surrounding area.

ifinor Modifications

While the old Abergavenny Library building is a Grade Il listed building, it is largely
suitable. In observing the limitations there are a few minor adjustments that would be

Page 15 of 19
P age 31 Decembar 2024



MMCA
Business case

required to ensure the building meets the specific requirements of a Muslim
Community Centre:

1. Bathroom Facilitles: Slight modifications to the existing toilets would be
needed to create separate ablution area for men and women, allowing them to
perform wudu before praying.

2. Privacy: The addition of curtains or partitions (which could be stand-alone)
would be necessary to ensure privacy for women during prayers and certain
community activities, such as fitness classes or religious gatherings.

3. Prayer carpets: The existing carpets may need to be replaced with new
carpets that indicate Quibla/ prayer directions (The position towards Mecca in
which all Muslims across the world face for prayers) along with showing the
rows one would stand in to perform prayer as a group.

These modifications are minimal, and the building is already weli-suited for the
purpose intended, no major structural changes would be required, which makes this a
cost-effective and practical solution for establishing a permanent Muslim Community
Centre.

9.0 Monitoring

Processes through outputs will be regularly reviewed and analysed (Appendix G).
Outcomes will be measured using both qualitative and quantitafive factors and include

Attendance at mosque male /female

Participation in events

Involvement in planning and developing services

Community stories

Identifying, developing or sourcing workshops /presentations / training
Human factor outcome such as improved wellbeing, confidence etc
Funding applications

Innovation ideas using suggestion box

Surveys '

Equal opportunities monitoring

Partnership development

10.0 Marketing

Muslims in Monmouthshire already have connections with MMCA as this is the only
place for direct support for this communify. Wider than this the management have
direct links with Muslim Doctors Cymru and a platform on Newport Community Muslim
group (a group with more than 1000 members) and all the mosques in South Wales
where announcements and marketing can be made, Muslim Council of Wales, Islamic
Relief, and other charities.

Page 16 of 19
Page 32 Decernber 2024



MMCA
Business case

MMCA currently uses WhatsApp groups to communicate, however when a permanent
venue is found, MMCA will work on setting up a website, pages on social media
platforms and a more sustained email service.

We intend to continue and build on these when we have secured a premises.
11.0 Governance

Mosques are owned by their community. They are genuine civic organisations where
the local people who attend the mosque also finance its upkeep and running.

An establishment of a mosque would enable membership of the Mosques and imams
National Advisory Board (MINAB) that is representative of over 600 mosques in the
UK. It is an independent self-regulatory body aspiring to build capacity in mosques,
help deliver standards and ensure mosque personnel have a better understanding of
British Muslims' needs so that it can address any concerns more effectively. It works
with and represents alf Muslim traditions and schools of thought and to apply principles
of good governance. it also promotes best practice in British mosques.

MMCA also has its own governance in place through its constitution and annual
reporting.

12.0 Partnership Working

Partnership working is critical fo the success of implementing cohesive communities
through a mosque facility. The public sector, third sector organisations and citizens
are key in helping to embed a range of information, advice, support and services to
align with ‘what matters’ . MMCA already has good working relationships with a wide
range of people and communities and continues to develop and maintain links. This
includes other mosques, Monmouthshire County Council, Gwent police, Health Board,
Muslim Doctors Cymru, EYST, GAVO, local businesses, local schools, Abergavenny
Town of Sanctuary, Hay, Brecon and Talgarth Sanctuary of Refugees and other
charities.

13.0 Funding Implications

Mosques are generally funded in a variety of ways. Funding through Zakat, aims and
other donations. Each individual donates when attending Friday prayers as a norm at
an amount they are able to reasonably afford.

The financial position for MMCA is provided (Appendix H).

Page 17 of 19
Page 33 December 2024



MMCA
Business case

Most mosques have very limited resources and therefore if their vision for more
improved facilities and capacity is to be realised, more resources would be needed.
Therefore, the proposal is designed with a view to identify, apply for, secure and
manage local govemnment grants or bursaries or gifting to support activities and
development in establishing and sustaining the community mosque facility.

Currently, MMCA has a bank account through which limited funds are received,
primarily from community members and small businesses. Registering as a charity,
will provide opportunities to secure a wide range of funding, both nationally and
internationally and ensure the sustainability of the centre and expand outreach.
However, registering as a charity to receive more funds and support the charity ideally
would require a permanent place.

14.0 Way Forward

Mosques are not only places of worship but also cultural, education and spiritual
centres that play a crucial role in shaping the understanding of religious, social, and
cultural identity.

The establishment of a permanent centre would allow the MMCA to significantly
expand its services and activities. The goal is for MMCA to register as a charity and
enable

e Muslims in Monmouthshire to have an equal opportunity to the right of worship
to perform their five daily mandatory prayers.

@ 30 days of Fasting during Ramadan to be observed in congregation, the same
as billions of Muslims across the world.

¢ Build and strengthen trust, community cohesion and integration.

¢ Enrich the cultural landscape of Monmouthshire and promote the values of
equality, diversity, and inclusivity.

# Bring a range of value (point 7.1).

@ Allow Monmouthshire to address the gap in equity and access of provision of
services for the population it serves.

+ Encourage Muslims, particularly those of skilled professions to choose
Monmouthshire as their preferred place of residence.

» MMCA recognises that innovation and flexibility is required in striving towards
supporting the Muslim population in Monmouthshire with a mosque facility and
are well placed to ensure that this brings economic, cultural, social and public
value to individuals, groups, organisations and communities at large.

Page 18 of 19
Page 34 December 2024



Appendix 1

B monmouthshire

Q) sir fynwy

Name of the Officer; Nicholas Keyse Please give a brief description of the aims of the proposal
Phone no: 01633 644773 This report is brought forward to award the tender and the letting of the
Former Abergavenny Library to the Monmouthshire Muslim Community
E-mail: nicholaskeyse@monmouthshire.gov.uk Association.
Name of Service area Date: 215t May 2025
Resources
o

«Q
@. Are your proposals going to affect any people or groups of people with protected characteristics? Please explain the impact, the
g evidence you have used and any action you are taking below.




Appendix 1

Protected
Characteristics

Describe any positive impacts your
proposal has on the protected
characteristic

Describe any negative impacts
your proposal has on the
protected characteristic

What has been/will be done to
mitigate any negative impacts or
better contribute to positive
impacts?

faVYal "\R

Age The re-purposing of the former library will No impact identified at this stage Regular engagement with the tenant will
enable a wider age group to access the be undertaken to assess and evidence
property than had been the case under its the efforts being made to support
more recent uses within the Education groups of people with protected
directorate. Older people will be able to characteristics.
access opportunities at the property to meet
their needs, aspirations and wants. The
proposed use will facilitate creation of multi-
use space that’s been focused around
supporting the local community.

O

~Disability Developing the site as an inclusive No impact identified at this stage Regular engagement with the tenant

D community asset will further extend the will be undertaken to assess and

D range of opportunities and activities within evidence the efforts being made to

D) the community which people with a disability support groups of people with protected
can access. characteristics.

Gender No impact identified at this stage No impact identified at this stage Regular engagement with the tenant will

reassignment

be undertaken to assess and evidence
the efforts being made to support
groups of people with protected
characteristics.

Marriage or civil
partnership

No impact identified at this stage

No impact identified at this stage

Regular engagement with the tenant will
be undertaken to assess and evidence
the efforts being made to support
groups of people with protected
characteristics.




Appendix 1

Describe any positive impacts your Describe any negative impacts What has been/will be done to
Protected proposal has on the protected your proposal has on the mitigate any negative impacts or
Characteristics characteristic protected characteristic better contribute to positive
impacts?

Pregnancy or No impact identified at this stage No impact identified at this stage Regular engagement with the tenant will

maternity be undertaken to assess and evidence

the efforts being made to support
groups of people with protected
characteristics.

Race The Abergavenny area is the most diverse No impact identified at this stage Regular engagement with the tenant will
location in Monmouthshire with regard to be undertaken to assess and evidence
ethnicity, although those of white ethnicity the efforts being made to support
make up the vast majority of the population. groups of people with protected
Proportions of mixed race and Asian characteristics.
ethnicities are the highest in Monmouthshire
(0.8% and 1.4%). The 0.5% change in the

o 2021 census was the largest increase

D among high-level ethnic groups in

«Q Monmouthshire. The proposal will support

© this increase through the provision of

Sﬂ Monmouthshire’s first mosque and
community facility.




Appendix 1

Describe any positive impacts your Describe any negative impacts What has been/will be done to
Protected proposal has on the protected your proposal has on the mitigate any negative impacts or
Characteristics characteristic protected characteristic better contribute to positive
impacts?

Religion or Belief The proposals for the property will directly No impact identified at this stage Regular engagement with the tenant will
contribute to addressing a longstanding be undertaken to assess and evidence
requirement for a Mosque provision within the efforts being made to support
the County. Monmouthshire boasts a groups of people with protected
diverse community embracing all cultures characteristics.

and backgrounds. In particular, the Muslim
population has seen a growth over the past
5 years. This has resulted in a
Monmouthshire Muslim Community
Association being set up and run by
professionals and the community. Currently
there is no mosque in the Monmouthshire

;E area resulting in either no access to

«@ worship, having to travel to mosques in

P other Local authority areas such as Newport
Eﬁ and this has proved challenging in terms of

travel, arriving at specified prayer times and
during Ramadhan. This also means that
children do not have access to learning
education facilities on a daily basis as is a
norm for the religion in the rest of the world.
The proposal intends to promote interfaith
and trust-building events such to encourage
greater religious and cultural tolerance, and
promoting inclusivity, diversity and
integration.

Sex No impact identified at this stage No impact identified at this stage No impact identified at this stage




Appendix 1

Protected
Characteristics

Describe any positive impacts your
proposal has on the protected
characteristic

Describe any negative impacts
your proposal has on the
protected characteristic

What has been/will be done to
mitigate any negative impacts or
better contribute to positive
impacts?

Sexual Orientation

No impact identified at this stage

No impact identified at this stage

No mitigating actions identified at this
stage

6E abed




Appendix 1

2. The Socio-economic Duty and Social Justice
The Socio-economic Duty requires public bodies to have due regard to the need to reduce inequalities of outcome which result from socio-
economic disadvantage when taking key decisions This duty aligns with our commitment as an authority to Social Justice.

Describe any positive impacts your
proposal has in respect of people
suffering socio economic
disadvantage

Describe any negative impacts
your proposal has in respect of
people suffering socio economic
disadvantage.

What has been/will be done to
mitigate any negative impacts or
better contribute to positive
impacts?

Socio-economic
dDuty and Social
gJustice

O\ Jy "\RV\ [

D
AN
D

The scheme, and desire to lease to a
community group for management of the
property, align with the Well-Being of Future
Generations Act 2015. Creation of a new
facility that makes Monmouthshire more
inclusive and accessible will result in socio-
economic gains.

No impact identified at this stage

No mitigating actions identified at this
stage




Appendix 1

How does your proposal impact
on the following aspects of the
Council’s Welsh Language
Standards:

Describe the positive impacts of
this proposal

Describe the negative impacts
of this proposal

What has been/will be done
to mitigate any negative
Impacts or better contribute
to positive impacts

Policy Making

Effects on the use of the Welsh
language,

Promoting Welsh language
Treating the Welsh language no

UIess favourably

No impact identified at this stage

No impact identified at this stage

No mitigating actions identified at
this stage

-+ AR
O

iOperationaI

iRecruitment & Training of
workforce

No impact identified at this stage .

No impact identified at this stage

No mitigating actions identified at
this stage

Service delivery

Use of Welsh language in service
delivery

Promoting use of the language

No impact identified at this stage

No impact identified at this stage

No mitigating actions identified at
this stage

3. Policy making and the Welsh language.




Appendix 1

4. Does your proposal deliver any of the well-being goals below? Please explain the impact (positive and negative) you expect, together
with suggestions of how to mitigate negative impacts or better contribute to the goal. There’s no need to put something in every box if it is not

relevant!

Well Being Goal

Does the proposal contribute to this goal?
Describe the positive and negative impacts.

What actions have been/will be taken to
mitigate any negative impacts or better
contribute to positive impacts?

-2+ ARV
N

A prosperous Wales

Efficient use of resources, skilled,
ducated people, generates wealth,

I_?Erovides jobs

D
AN
N

Positive: This proposal will enable us to re-purpose

an underutilized asset and offer an opportunity that

could enhance the availability of opportunities to the
community. The proposal will encourage economic

growth by making Monmouthshire a more inclusive

and attractive place to live.

Negative: it remains a risk that broader community
uses or hire arrangements could negatively impact
on existing provisions within Abergavenny. It is
believed this use is bespoke and therefore such a
risk is minimal.

The proposals are to improve and enhance the
existing facilities through continued engagement
with the local community.

A resilient Wales

Maintain and enhance biodiversity and
ecosystems that support resilience and
can adapt to change (e.g. climate
change)

Positive: the property benefits from a small garden
which should feature in the proposals of any
occupier, such that opportunities for growing or
biodiversity are captured. Early engagement with
Abergavenny Town Council is intended to explorer
the means of working closely with the proposed
occupier.

No mitigating actions identified at this stage

A healthier Wales

People’s physical and mental
wellbeing is maximized and health
impacts are understood

Positive: The proposal is consistent with the
commitments of the Asset Management Strategy,
which includes maximizing the use of Council
assets. The properties layout and location lend
themselves to a range of uses.

No mitigating actions identified at this stage

A Wales of cohesive communities
Communities are attractive, viable,

safe and well connected

Positive: The MMCA business plan outlines the
aspiration to create cohesive communities. The
proposed use would be supported by a local

No mitigating actions identified at this stage




.I_"\RV\I
oot

Appendix 1

Well Being Goal

Does the proposal contribute to this goal?
Describe the positive and negative impacts.

What actions have been/will be taken to
mitigate any negative impacts or better
contribute to positive impacts?

charitable group and organization of local volunteers
with the purpose of developing and maintaining the
community hub.

A globally responsible Wales
Taking account of impact on global
well-being when considering local
social, economic and environmental
wellbeing

The development will address the importance of the
wellbeing of current and future residents (prescribed
in the 2015 Wellbeing and Future Generations Act).
The proposed tenant will commit to investing in the
property including energy efficiency improvements.

No mitigating actions identified at this stage

A Wales of vibrant culture and
thriving Welsh language

Lulture, heritage and Welsh language
Dare promoted and protected. People
are encouraged to do sport, art and
ecreation

No impact identified at this stage

No mitigating actions identified at this stage

A more equal Wales

People can fulfil their potential no
matter what their background or
circumstances

The development will enable community use without
prejudice, and support access to facilities for the
benefit of all residents. The new facility will operate
as a community ‘hub’, and venue in which
community cohesion and support can be provided.
Providing a place of worship and a community hub
for both the young and older generations from the
wider community is desperately needed in a central
and accessible location such as Abergavenny. Since
the formation of Monmouthshire Muslim Community
Association (MMCA) there is clear evidence that a
place of worship and an educational venue is
needed to fulfil the community needs.

No mitigating actions identified at this stage

5. How has your proposal embedded and prioritised the sustainable governance principles in its development?




Appendix 1

Sustainable Development

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met

Are there any additional actions to be taken to

Involvement

Principle this principle? If yes, describe how. If not explain mitigate any negative impacts or better
why. contribute to positive impacts?
Balancing The implementation of the proposal will enable the No mitigating actions identified at this stage
short term application of a proposal for short- and long-term use of the
need with property, including in the asset itself. The property lends
itself to meet a range of uses which can support people to
long term and . .
_ access services or offers. The granting of a 30-year lease
planning for | \yiil allow MMCA to pursue other funding avenues in order
Long Term the future to enhance the property.
Working The proposal to lease the property ensures it is utilized as a | No mitigating actions identified at this stage
together with | community asset and for the benefit of partners operating in
H‘ other our communities.
§o) partners to
& deliver
jDCollabnmﬁon objectives
Involving Community consultation and engagement is intended by No mitigating actions identified at this stage
those with the tenant in advance of occupation to strengthen
an interest knowledge and understanding of the proposed use, as well
and seeking | as promote activities for residents to access.
their views




Appendix 1

Sustainable Development

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met

Are there any additional actions to be taken to

Principle this principle? If yes, describe how. If not explain mitigate any negative impacts or better
why. contribute to positive impacts?
Leasing of the property for this purpose will help to address | No mitigating actions identified at this stage
Putting the lack of facilities for the community within
resources Monmouthshire. With no existing access to a place of
into worship within the County, residents are having to travel to
preventing mosques in other Local authority areas and this has proved
problems challenging in terms of travel, arriving at specified prayer
occurring or | times and during Ramadhan. This also means that children
Prevention getting do not have access to learning education facilities on a
worse daily basis as is a norm for the religion in the rest of the
world.
o Considering | The proposed use will continue to have a strong community | No mitigating actions identified at this stage
& impact on all | focus, linking people to other organisations and resources
P wellbeing in their local communities.
N
Ve goals
together and
on other
Integration bodies

6. Council has agreed the need to consider the impact its decisions have on the following important responsibilities: Corporate
Parenting and Safeguarding. Are your proposals going to affect any of these responsibilities?

Describe any positive impacts your
proposal has

Describe any negative impacts
your proposal has

What will you do/ have you done
to mitigate any negative impacts
or better contribute to positive
impacts?

Safeguarding

None identified at this stage

.No impact identified at this stage

No mitigating actions identified at this
stage




Appendix 1

Corporate Parenting No impact identified at this stage

No impact identified at this stage

No mitigating actions identified at this
stage

7. What evidence and data has informed the development of your proposal?

Vi-Tq|

"\RV\ [

In accordance with the requirements of the Asset Management Strategy, a vacant property has been marketed for receipt of proposals outlining the means
by which the property can be repurposed and generate a financial and social return. The recommendations of this report are informed by a scoring matrix
considering the proposed use and its suitability, demand and evidence for the proposal, terms including financial and repair obligations, experience of the

applicant and due diligence accompanying the proposal, financial sustainability of the group. The business plan of the winning tenderer outlines the
demand for the proposed use.

214

SUMMARY: As aresult of completing this form, what are the main positive and negative impacts of your proposal, how have

they informed/changed the development of the proposal so far and what will you be doing in future?

Positive Impact

The proposal will enable an underutilised asset to be repurposed.
The proposal to offer the site for community use will enhance the availability of opportunities that are open, accessible and of interest to

people of all ages and abilities.

This proposal will strengthen and widen the opportunities available by providing a mosque and community centre to facilitate educational,
social, economic and recreational value for Muslim residents of Monmouthshire and the wider community.

Developing the site as a community asset/opportunity will further extend the range of opportunities and activities within the community.
Monmouthshire’s commitment as a county of sanctuary is about improving outcome’s by providing a welcoming environment,
challenging discrimination and negative perceptions and ensuring equality of opportunity where possible. The proposal strives to
promote good relations between groups ensuring vibrant and cohesive communities.

Negative Impacts




Appendix 1

- The creation of an additional community facility in close proximity to a number of existing community assets may negatively impact the sustainability
of other assets.

9. ACTIONS: As aresult of completing this form are there any further actions you will be undertaking? Please detail them below, if

applicable.
What are you going to do When are you going to do it? | Who is responsible
Landlord Services will progress lease negotiations and let the property. June 2025 Landlord Services

/v obed



Appendix 1

10.VERSION CONTROL: The Equality and Future Generations Evaluation should be used at the earliest stage, such as informally
within your service, and then further developed throughout the decision making process. Itis important to keep a record of this
process to demonstrate how you have considered and built in equality and future generations considerations wherever

possible.

Version | Decision making stage Date considered Brief description of any amendments made following

No. consideration

1. Internal SCH decision making 13.03.24 DMT asked for assurance that people within supported living
arrangements who used to access Greenfingers are being
appropriately supported with day time opportunities of their
choice.

. Informal Cabinet 19.03.24

8 ab




g

13

(Cinema )

LEW

VICTORIA STREET

abed

Poli

Stat

ce

ion

Q

© Crown copyright and database rights 2024 OS AC0000823719)

[ A

Redline Plan

Former Abergavenny Library

Grid Ref:329674,214329

Scale:1:500

l“; Monmouthshire County Council, County Hall, The Rhadyr, Usk. NP15 1GA
Printed on:2024-10-17 14:44:13 by NicholasKeyse@monmouthshire.gov.uk

¢




This page is intentionally left blank



h"’i monmouthshire
LB sir fynwy

INVITING PROPOSALS

o

Y ow e NN IR Y
A ; &.\ J \'1 N
N A=\ ‘\_,“\w ~ AN
: ‘l\ % % 3
e
X \

SN T

TENDER DEADLINE - 12:00 (noon) 20™" DECEMBER

Gross Internal Area 2,992 sq ft

—
<

4

L] l‘
Central town location with parking nearby ~ Community building suitable for multiple
uses

01633 644417 | Estates@monmouthshire.gov.uk | www.monmouthshire.gov.uk/available-property

Page 51


mailto:Estates@monmouthshire.gov.uk
http://www.monmouthshire.gov.uk/available-property

Monmouthshire County Council’s Estates Team are inviting proposals to purchase or lease the
Former Abergavenny Library building, situated on Baker Street in Abergavenny Town Centre.

The Former Abergavenny Library building is Grade
I listed and was built in 1905 by the Carnegie
Foundation. The building was erected to benefit
and serve the local community for educational
purposes.

The former library has a gross internal area
measuring approximately 2,992 sq ft and is
located on the corner of Baker Street and Victoria
Street. The ground floor consists of two large
reception rooms, a foyer, a toilet and storage
room. Upstairs benefits from several offices, a
toilet and small kitchen.

Trinity Terrace Car Park is located directly
opposite providing parking for users.

The site is available freehold with vacant
possession.

Monmouthshire County Council is not to charge
VAT on this property.

Its current Use Class (as a library) is D1 but if
interested parties are seeking a change of use
they should contact the Estates Team in the
first instance — 01633 644417.

Proposals are being accepted to either
purchase and/or lease the property (multiple
submissions accepted). Interested parties are
being asked to submit a tender form to the
MCC Estates Team using the tender forms
provided, no later than 12:00 pm on the 20t
of December 2024. Submissions will be
assessed against a scoring matrix including
financial offer, due diligence, experience and
funding capability. Parties are also
encouraged to detail additional benefits,
including any proposals to utilise local
employment/labour and maximise local
benefit.

Monmouthshire County Council will consider
alternative transaction structures including
unconditional and conditional offers.

Page 52



Page 53



Monmouthshire County Council give notice that: These particulars are set out as general outline online for the guidance of intending purchasers or
lessees and do not constitute, nor constitute part of, an offer or contract. All descriptions, references to condition and necessary permission for use
and occupation and other details are given in good faith and are themselves by inspection or otherwise as to the correctness of each of them. All
dimensions are approximate. No persons in the employment of Monmouthshire County Council has any authority to make or give any
representation or warranty whatsoever in relation to this property. All correspondence regarding this offer is subject to contract. In the event of
incancictencv hetween these Particiilare and Canditinns nf Sale the latter chall nrevail

Page 54




|
i
monmouthshire
sir fynwy

Informal Tender for the Former Library Building, Abergavenny, NP7 5BD

Please return this tender form in a sealed envelope, without any distinguishing marks or
features, either by post or hand delivered to:

Estates Team
Monmouthshire County Council
County Hall
Usk
NP15 1GA

I/we

Of (address)

Telephone no:

Email address:

Hereby offer to purchase the building for the sum of £

(offer in words)

Hereby offer to lease the building for the sum of £ per annum.

(offer in words)

For a term (length of time):

Proposed trading
name:

Proposed use:

Page 55



Please provide further information about you/your business plans for the business:

Dated the: (Day) of (Month) 2024
Signed:

Name of Signatory: (Capital Letters)
Position: (Capital Letters)

By completing this form you are agreeing that Monmouthshire Council can hold and use the
details provided for purposes reasonably associated with the letting of this property (for
additional information as to policies as to how we store and use such information please see
our web-site: Privacy Notice - Monmouthshire)

Page 56


https://www.monmouthshire.gov.uk/your-privacy/

	Agenda
	4 Galw mewn benderfyniad y Cabinet ar 21 Mai 2025 yng nghyswllt gosod cyn Lyfrgell y Fenni.
	LETTING OF THE FORMER ABERGAVENNY LIBRARY
	Appendix 1 - Scoring Matrix for Former Abergavenny Library redacted
	Appendix 2 - MMCA Business Plan
	Appendix 3 - Integrated Impact Assessment - Letting of the Former Abergavenny Library
	Appendix 4 - Redline Plan - Former Abergavenny Library
	Particulars for the Former Abergavenny Library
	Tender Form 2024 - Former Library Abergavenny


